
City of Sachse, Texas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting on Monday, July 8, 2013 

Time: 7:00 p.m.                      Place:  Sachse City Hall   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Members Present:   Members Absent:      
Scott Everett     
Charles Ross      
David Hock  
Paul Watkins  
Warren Becker    Staff Present:  
Julie Morris     Marc Kurbansade, Community Development Director 
  Greg Peters, City Engineer  
     Charlotte Youngblood, Secretary  
 
      Others Present:  
     Bill Adams, City Council Liaison  
 
 
Chairman Charles Ross opened the meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission at 7:00 p.m. 
and a quorum was declared.  
 
1. Invocation and Pledge of the Allegiance to the U.S. and Texas Flags  
 
The invocation was offered by Warren Becker and Paul Watkins led the pledges. 
 
2. Community Development Director’s Update Report: Briefing on current activities of 
staff.  
 
Mr. Kurbansade said City Council Member Jared Patterson had resigned from City Council. He 
also stated he was aiming to get a copy of the training session presented by the City Attorney Pete 
Smith at the last City Council Meeting to share with the commissioners.  
 
3. Consider approval of the minutes from the June 24, 2013 Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting.  
 
Scott Everett made a motion to approve the minutes of the June 24, 2013 Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting with corrections noted. Warren Becker seconded the motion. The motion 
passed with all voting in favor.  
 
4. Conduct a public hearing and make recommendation to City Council regarding the 
consideration of an Ordinance of the City of Sachse, Texas, amending the Comprehensive 
Zoning Ordinance and Map, as heretofore amended: to grant a change of zoning from 
Planned Development (PD-24) to a General Commercial (C-2) district on approximately 
9.599 acre tract of land, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and located on the 
northeast corner of Murphy Road and Blackburn Road, City of Sachse, Dallas and Collin 
Counties, Texas; providing for the approval of the Zoning Exhibit “B”.  
 



Mr. Kurbansade introduced the item. He explained that the applicant is requesting to rezone the 
subject property from its existing Planned Development zoning district to a General Commercial 
(C-2) zoning district. He provided background information and explained the zoning history of 
this property. He explained the proposed request would remove the Planned Development zoning 
designation, which includes the Concept Plan and the provisions associated with the PD. He 
stated that it is clear that there are a number of regulations that would become less strict if this 
zoning request were to be adopted. He explained that Murphy Road adjacent to the property is 
classified as a principal arterial on the City Thoroughfare Plan. He explained that this is the only 
principal arterial besides Highway 78 in the city. He went on to explain that Blackburn Road is a 
minor arterial which is the second highest classification in the City. He wanted to ensure that the 
proposed zoning request would be consistent with the surrounding thoroughfares. He also stated 
that there are several examples of General Commercial (C-2) abutting residential property in 
multiple locations in Sachse. He said that the development standards are largely the same in both 
zoning designations. The Planned Development is stricter as far as regulating the hours of 
operation and building height. He said based on those factors staff is making recommendation for 
approval.  
 
Bill Dahlstrom, 901 Main Street, thanked Mr. Kurbansade for his hard work and analysis on this 
particular case. He said they are here to ask for help in developing and marketing this tract of 
land. The land was purchased 16 years ago by the current owner Richard Squires. The Planned 
Development was approved three years ago with a particular user in mind. The PD has a 62,000 
square feet combined building footprint with a maximum of 14,000 square feet per building. He 
said they are requesting to rezone to C-2 to enable them to better market the property and the 
current Planned Development impedes and impairs development. The restrictive zoning makes it 
difficult for standards users. He said C-2 zoning would allow buildings larger than 14,000 square 
feet and therefore a more efficient layout can be achieved. He also noted that the zoning request is 
in compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. He stated that the economic benefits would 
be significant and the sooner they can develop the property the sooner the citizens can see the 
economic benefits to the community.  
 
Richard Squires, owner of the property, thanked staff for a thorough presentation. He stated he 
knows that sometimes people and cities are against development. They usually don’t want 
anything different than what is there today. He felt that was kind of the case in 2000 and 2011. 
The fact of the matter is an empty lot does not create anything. It does not create jobs, tax base, 
park, or a place for people to shop and use the amenities. He stated he has owned the property and 
developed the surrounding area with the knowledge that this corner would always be develop as 
commercial property. He said we need a new approach and we need to develop it for the reasons 
discussed earlier.  
 
Mr. Hock stated he understands the request to change from C-1 to C-2 zoning but the major issue 
is building height. He wanted to know if the owner would consider a maximum height 
requirement of 30 feet. Mr. Dahlstrom said they would not be opposed to the height restrictions. 
Mr. Kurbansade said because this is a standard zoning district the commissioners can’t attach 
conditions to it.  
 
Charles Ross opened the public hearing at 7:35 p.m.  
 
Ty Lamb, 6712 Southgate Drive, has lived in Westgate since 2000. He said he knows the history 
of the property and has always expected neighborhood shopping to go there. Although we did 
oppose Race-Trac it was approved. He said in 2009 the P&Z Board denied both requests for 
Race-Trac. However, in 2010 the City Council approved the SUP. All we want is a business in 



there that is adaptable and suitable for the neighborhood. He does not see any reason to change 
the zoning from the current PD to a C-2.  
 
Katia Volante, 1417 Sunrise Lane, stated that for the residents it is very important as to what is 
selected. She stated she knows that money is important to the town. However, the city needs to be 
sure that what they do is good for the neighborhood and the children in the neighborhood. The 
city needs to preserve the good people in this neighborhood that have been there for over 13 
years.  
 
Reggie Mabry, 6703 Fairfield Way, has been in Sachse since 1987 and has been in the Westgate 
area since 2000. He did not hear anything reflected about how this zoning change would affect 
the adjacent residents. The other thing he said he never heard was anyone address the noise 
factor. He asked what type of businesses are going in and how would they affect surrounding 
property values. He asked if there were any plans to increase the length of that road. If so, he was 
concerned with the increased noise level and traffic.  
 
With no else speaking at the public hearing, Warren Becker moved to close the public hearing 
Scott Everett seconded the motion. The motion passed with all voting in favor. The public 
hearing was closed at 7:45 p.m. 
 
Mr. Dahlstrom addressed some of the questions. He stated the core issue in requesting this zoning 
change is the building footprint. It inhibits the ability to market the property. He says a tract of 
land this size requires an anchor store and an anchor store would need to be a lot larger than the 
allowable maximum building footprint. He said C-1 does allow for a grocery store but when is 
the last time you seen a grocery store that was 14,000 square foot. He said the zoning change 
would allow a more efficient use of land and allow for the property to be fully developed.  
 
Mr. Squire stated that they are interested in bringing quality development to this corner and the 
city has enough provisions in place to ensure quality development.  
 
Mr. Kurbansade stated he could not address economic benefits. However, he could talk about the 
adjacency to the neighborhood. He stated that the rear setbacks are 25 feet in both zoning 
districts. He said that if the maximum building footprint is 65,000 square feet regardless if it’s 
one building or separate buildings the traffic and noise generated would be similar. However, he 
did say that the restriction in loading times and height restrictions in the current PD would not be 
in place under the proposed zoning request.  
 
Mr. Ross asked if the City Engineer could comment on future plans for Blackburn Road. Greg 
Peters, City Engineer, stated as a minor arterial road on our CIP plan it is to be constructed as a 
45 foot wide concrete roadway. Any new development along this roadway would have to develop 
half of the roadway or escrow funds for it. At this time there are no funds available to construct 
this roadway but sometime in the future Blackburn Road would be constructed as a 45 foot 
roadway.  
 
More discussion followed about the landscaping requirements, building setbacks and building 
height. Mr. Ross stated that the commissioners are struggling with the allowable maximum height 
of the building. He realized that the market drives things but the potential of maybe not a 90 feet 
building but maybe a 60 feet building that could be built within 25 feet of the property line in an 
area with low intensity uses. He asked what about alternatives to just the straight C-2 zoning and 
could the applicant go forward with a new Plan Development that allows all the uses but does 
limit the height of the buildings. Mr. Kurbansade stated from a city’s standpoint the main 



mechanism we have to control it would be through zoning. The applicant does have the ability 
through CCR’s and deed restrictions to deed restrict the property where it would not be allowed.  
 
Mr. Squire stated he is more than confident that there will not be a large building built on the 
property and he is more than willing to deed restrict the property for building height. He stated he 
could file deed restrictions tomorrow. Mr. Dahlstrom said they would be agreeable to postpone 
the item to a future date in order to allow them time to file deed restrictions at the County in 
regards to building height.  
 
Mr. Kurbansade stated that the city does not enforce deed restrictions but it would accomplish the 
same thing. He said he will discuss this item further with the City Attorney before the next 
meeting.  
 
After more discussion, David Hock made a motion to postpone the agenda item to July 22, 2013 
at 7:00 p.m. Paul Watkins seconded the motion. The motion passed with all voting in favor. 
 
There being no further business, Warren Becker made a motion to adjourn. The meeting was 
adjourned at 8:17 p.m.   
 
 
___________________________   ___________________________ 
Secretary       Chairperson 


